to warrant preparation of a federalism assessment.

Executive Order 12988, Civil Justice Reform

Under Executive Order 12988, the Office of the Solicitor determined that these proposed supplementary rules would not unduly burden the judicial system and that they meet the requirements of sections 3(a) and 3(b)(2) of the Order.

Executive Order 13175, Consultation and Coordination With Indian Tribal Governments

Coordination and consultation as to development of the UMRBNM Interpretive Center and the proposed establishment of new fees has included contact with the following Tribal entities: Blackfeet, Nez Perce and Little Shell Band of the Chippewa Tribes. As a result of the consultation and coordination, in accordance with Executive Order 13175, BLM has found that these proposed fees and supplementary rules for the recreation site do not include policies that have Tribal implications.

Paperwork Reduction Act

These proposed supplementary rules do not contain information collection requirements that the Office of Management and Budget must approve under the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, 44 U.S.C. 3501 et seq.

Author

The principal author of these proposed supplementary rules is Connie Jacobs, UMRBNM Interpretive Center, Lewistown Field Office, Bureau of Land Management. The proposed supplementary rules for the UMRBNM Interpretive Center will go into effect six months after the publication of this notice. The supplementary rules will be posted at the site, in the center and the Lewistown Field Office and on the Web site http://www.mt.blm.gov/ldo/index.html.

The following supplementary rules are established for the interpretive center site:

- 1. Rules.
- a. No parking at the site overnight; no parking lot use from 10:30 p.m. through 6 a.m.
- b. Vehicles and camping gear may not be left unattended in the parking lot or interpretive center site for longer than 24 hours.
- c. Firearms, bows and arrows, other weapons, air rifles, paintball equipment, pistols and any projectile may not be discharged in the parking lot or on the interpretive center site at any time.

- d. Persons using the interpretive center will be subject to a standard amenity fee. Future adjustments in the fee amount will be modified in accordance with the BLM Upper Missouri River Breaks National Monument Interpretive Center business plan, consultation with the Central Montana Resource Advisory Council and other public notice prior to a fee increase. All fee information will be on the Web site http://www.blm.gov/mt/st/ en/fo/lewistown_field_office.html and posted at the Lewistown Field Office and the UMRBNM Interpretive Center. Fee amounts are posted on-site, at the BLM Montana State Office, and the BLM Lewistown Field Office. Copies of the adjustment schedule and the Upper Missouri River Breaks National Monument Interpretive Center business plan are available for inspection at onsite, at the BLM Montana State Office, and at the BLM Lewistown Field Office.
- e. Motorized vehicles must remain on constructed roadways, must park at designated sites only, and may not obstruct traffic flow or park at handicap accessible sites without having required accessible parking documentation. Cross-country vehicle travel is not allowed.
- f. Drivers must obey posted speed limits at all times.
- g. Pets must be kept on a leash within the interpretive center site, and day use areas must be kept free of pet waste.
- h. Organizations making a profit, or organizations seeking to make a profit at the UMRBNM Interpretive Center, are classified as commercial and must obtain a special recreation permit separate from the standard amenity fee at the interpretive center.
 - 2. Exceptions.

Federal, state, and local law enforcement officers, government employees, and BLM volunteers acting in the course of their official duties are exempt from these supplementary rules. Limitations on the use of motorized vehicles do not apply to emergency vehicles, fire suppression and rescue vehicles, law enforcement vehicles, and other vehicles performing official duties, or as approved by an authorized officer of BLM.

3. Violations of these rules are punishable by a fine not to exceed \$1,000 and/or imprisonment not to exceed 12 months (43 CFR 8360.0–7), or the enhanced penalties established in 18 U.S.C. 3571.

Authority: Notice of establishment of the fee area is provided pursuant to 16 U.S.C. 6803(b). Supplementary Rules are established pursuant to 43 CFR 8365.1–5. BLM welcomes public comments on this proposal.

Dated: April 17, 2007.

June Bailey,

Field Office Manager, Lewistown Field Office. [FR Doc. E7–13083 Filed 7–5–07; 8:45 am] BILLING CODE 4310–SS–P

INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION

[Inv. No. 337-TA-610]

In the Matter of Certain Endodontic Instruments; Notice of Investigation

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade Commission.

ACTION: Institution of investigation pursuant to 19 U.S.C. 1337.

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that a complaint was filed with the U.S. International Trade Commission on June 5, 2007, under section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. 1337, on behalf of Dentsply International Inc. of York, Pennsylvania. A supplement to the complaint was filed on June 22, 2007. The complaint, as supplemented, alleges violations of section 337 in the importation into the United States, the sale for importation, and the sale within the United States after importation of certain endodontic instruments by reason of infringement of U.S. Patent Nos. 5,628,674 and 6.206.695. The complaint, as supplemented, further alleges that an industry in the United States exists as required by subsection (a)(2) of section 337.

The complainant requests that the Commission institute an investigation and, after the investigation, issue a permanent exclusion order and permanent cease and desist order.

ADDRESSES: The complaint and supplement, except for any confidential information contained therein, are available for inspection during official business hours (8:45 a.m. to 5:15 p.m.) in the Office of the Secretary, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street, SW., Room 112, Washington, DC 20436, telephone 202-205-2000. Hearing impaired individuals are advised that information on this matter can be obtained by contacting the Commission's TDD terminal on 202-205–1810. Persons with mobility impairments who will need special assistance in gaining access to the Commission should contact the Office of the Secretary at 202-205-2000. General information concerning the Commission may also be obtained by accessing its Internet server at http:// www.usitc.gov. The public record for this investigation may be viewed on the Commission's electronic docket (EDIS) at http://www.usitc.gov/secretary/edis.htm.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Erin D.E. Joffre, Esq., Office of Unfair Import Investigations, U.S. International Trade Commission, telephone (202) 205–2550.

Authority: The authority for institution of this investigation is contained in section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, and in section 210.10 of the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure, 19 CFR 210.10 (2006).

Scope of Investigation: Having considered the complaint and supplement, the U.S. International Trade Commission, on June 27, 2007, ordered that—

- (1) Pursuant to subsection (b) of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, an investigation be instituted to determine whether there is a violation of subsection (a)(1)(B) of section 337 in the importation into the United States, the sale for importation, or the sale within the United States after importation of certain endodontic instruments by reason of infringement of one or more of claims 1-3, and 5 of U.S. Patent No. 5,628,674 and claim 2 of U.S. Patent No. 6,206,695, and whether an industry in the United States exists as required by subsection (a)(2) of section 337;
- (2) For the purpose of the investigation so instituted, the following are hereby named as parties upon which this notice of investigation shall be served:
- (a) The complainant is: Dentsply International Inc., Susquehanna Commerce Center, 221 West Philadelphia Street, York, Pennsylvania 17405.
- (b) The respondents are the following entities alleged to be in violation of section 337, and are the parties upon which the complaint, as supplemented, is to be served:

Guidance Endodontics, LLC, 7520 Montgomery Blvd NE, Suite E–1, Albuquerque, New Mexico 87109. Micro Mega International Manufactures, BP 1353—5–12, rue du Tunnel, 25006 Besancon cedex, France.

- (c) The Commission investigative attorney, party to this investigation, is Erin D.E. Joffre, Esq., Office of Unfair Import Investigations, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street, SW., Room 401, Washington, DC 20436; and
- (3) For the investigation so instituted, the Honorable Carl C. Charneski is designated as the presiding administrative law judge.

Responses to the complaint and the notice of investigation must be

submitted by the named respondents in accordance with section 210.13 of the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure, 19 CFR 210.13. Pursuant to 19 CFR 201.16(d) and 210.13(a), such responses will be considered by the Commission if received not later than 20 days after the date of service by the Commission of the complaint and the notice of investigation. Extensions of time for submitting responses to the complaint and the notice of investigation will not be granted unless good cause therefor is shown.

Failure of a respondent to file a timely response to each allegation in the complaint and in this notice may be deemed to constitute a waiver of the right to appear and contest the allegations of the complaint and this notice, and to authorize the administrative law judge and the Commission, without further notice to the respondent, to find the facts to be as alleged in the complaint and this notice and to enter an initial determination and a final determination containing such findings, and may result in the issuance of a limited exclusion order or cease and desist order or both directed against the respondent.

By order of the Commission. Issued: July 2, 2007.

Marilyn R. Abbott,

Secretary to the Commission.
[FR Doc. E7–13119 Filed 7–5–07; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 7020–02–P

INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION

[Inv. No. 337-TA-608]

In the Matter of Certain Nitrile Gloves; Notice of Investigation

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade Commission.

ACTION: Institution of investigation pursuant to 19 U.S.C. 1337.

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that a complaint was filed with the U.S. International Trade Commission on May 30, 2007, under section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. 1337, on behalf of Tillotson Corporation d/b/a Best Manufacturing Company of Menlo, Georgia. The complaint alleges violations of section 337 in the importation into the United States, the sale for importation, and the sale within the United States after importation of certain nitrile gloves by reason of infringement of U.S. Patent No. Re. 35,616. The complaint further alleges that an industry in the United States

exists as required by subsection (a)(2) of section 337.

The complainant requests that the Commission institute an investigation and, after the investigation, issue a permanent general exclusion order and permanent cease and desist orders.

ADDRESSES: The complaint, except for any confidential information contained therein, is available for inspection during official business hours (8:45 a.m. to 5:15 p.m.) in the Office of the Secretary, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street, SW., Room 112, Washington, DC 20436, telephone 202-205-2000. Hearing impaired individuals are advised that information on this matter can be obtained by contacting the Commission's TDD terminal on 202-205-1810. Persons with mobility impairments who will need special assistance in gaining access to the Commission should contact the Office of the Secretary at 202–205–2000. General information concerning the Commission may also be obtained by accessing its internet server at http:// www.usitc.gov. The public record for this investigation may be viewed on the Commission's electronic docket (EDIS) at http://www.usitc.gov/secretary/ edis.htm.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Vu Q. Bui, Esq., Office of Unfair Import Investigations, U.S. International Trade Commission, telephone (202) 205–2582.

Authority: The authority for institution of this investigation is contained in section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, and in section 210.10 of the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure, 19 CFR 210.10 (2006).

Scope of Investigation: Having considered the complaint, the U.S. International Trade Commission, on June 26, 2007, ordered that—

- (1) Pursuant to subsection (b) of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, an investigation be instituted to determine whether there is a violation of subsection (a)(1)(B) of section 337 in the importation into the United States, the sale for importation, or the sale within the United States after importation of certain nitrile gloves by reason of infringement of one or more of claims 1 and 17–19 of U.S. Patent No. Re. 35,616, and whether an industry in the United States exists as required by subsection (a)(2) of section 337;
- (2) For the purpose of the investigation so instituted, the following are hereby named as parties upon which this notice of investigation shall be served:
 - (a) The complainant is—